

a trial de novo in the county court in the county where the loss occurred. The decision of the county court may be appealed to the district court and supreme court in the same manner as any civil action is appealed. Review in the county court may be obtained by the filing of a petition for review with the clerk of the county court within 60 days following receipt of a decision under this section. Upon the filing of a petition, the clerk of the county court shall mail a copy thereof to the commissioner and set a time for hearing which shall be held within 90 days of the filing of the petition.

Sec. 2. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective the day following final enactment.

Approved March 23, 1982

---

**CHAPTER 630 — H.F.No. 1975**

*An act relating to local government; permitting towns to issue off-sale liquor licenses; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 340.11, by adding a subdivision.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 340.11, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 10b. OFF-SALE LICENSES; TOWNS. The town board of any town exercising powers pursuant to section 368.01, subdivision 1, may issue off-sale licenses for the sale of intoxicating liquor to exclusive liquor stores with the approval of the commissioner of public safety. Licenses issued under this subdivision shall be governed by the appropriate provisions of the intoxicating liquor act except as provided otherwise by this subdivision. The fee for a license shall be fixed by the board in an amount not to exceed \$500.

Approved March 23, 1982

---

**CHAPTER 631 — H.F.No. 1993**

*An act relating to intoxicating liquor; veterans' organization licenses in first class cities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 340.11, Subdivision 11.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 340.11, Subdivision 11, is amended to read:

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 11. **ON-SALE LICENSES, INCLUDING HOTELS, CLUBS, RESTAURANTS, AND ON-SALE EXCLUSIVE LIQUOR STORES.** "On-sale" licenses may be issued by municipalities for the sale of intoxicating liquors in hotels, clubs, restaurants and establishments for the sale of "on-sale" liquors exclusively within the number authorized by this section. ~~Except in a city of the first class and~~ In addition to the number of licenses authorized by this section, an "on-sale" license may be issued, if approved by the commissioner of public safety, to a bona fide club which has been in existence for 15 years or more or to a congressionally chartered veterans' organization which has been in existence for ~~ten~~ five years. ~~Such a~~ The club or veterans' organization ~~shall~~ must be incorporated in order to be eligible to apply for a license, and the license issued ~~shall~~ must be for the sale of intoxicating liquors to members and bona fide guests only. The license fee for ~~such~~ an "on-sale" license issued by a municipality pursuant to this subdivision shall be in an amount determined by the governing body thereof subject to the following limitations: up to \$300 for a veterans organization or fraternal club with a membership of 200 or less; up to \$500 for a veterans organization or fraternal club with a membership of between 201 and 500; up to \$650 for a veterans organization or fraternal club with a membership of between 501 and 1,000; up to \$800 for a veterans organization or fraternal club with a membership of between 1,001 and 2,000; up to \$1,000 for a veterans organization or fraternal club with a membership between 2,000 and 4,000; up to \$2,000 for a veterans organization or fraternal club with a membership of between 4,001 and 6,000; and up to \$3,000 for a veterans organization or fraternal club with a membership of more than 6,000. For purposes of the maximum license fee which may be imposed by a municipality pursuant to this subdivision, "fraternal club" means a club which serves only members and their guests and which uses any profits derived from these sales principally for sponsoring activities beneficial to the community and not for the benefit of any individual. Except in cities of the first, second, and third class, a license may be issued jointly to congressionally chartered veterans' organizations ~~which~~ that otherwise qualify under this subdivision.

**Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE.**

Section 1 is effective July 1, 1982.

Approved March 23, 1982

---

**CHAPTER 632 — H.F.No. 1994**

*An act relating to financial institutions; authorizing bank or trust company investment in community welfare projects; permitting certain shared appreciation mortgages; providing that the mortgage becomes due and payable upon its sale or transfer; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 48.61, by adding a subdivision; and Minnesota Statutes 1981 Supplement, Section 47.20, Subdivision 4b.*

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.